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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
MARSHALL DIVISION

UNILOC USA., INC. and UNILOC
LUXEMBOURG S.A.,

Plaintiffs,
V- Civil Action No. 2:16-cv-568
ZOOM VIDEO .
COMMUNICATIONS, INC, Jury Trial Demanded

Defendant.

ORIGINAL COMPLAINT
FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiffs, Uniloc USA, Inc. and Uniloc Luxembourg, S.A. (together “Uniloc”), as and for
their complaint against defendant, Zoom Video Communications, Inc. (“Defendant”), allege as

follows:

THE PARTIES

1. Uniloc USA, Inc. (“Uniloc USA”) is a Texas corporation having a principal place
of business at Legacy Town Center I, Suite 380, 7160 Dallas Parkway, Plano Texas 75024. Uniloc
also maintains a place of business at 102 N. College, Suite 603, Tyler, Texas 75702.

2. Uniloc Luxembourg S.A. (“Uniloc Luxembourg”) is a Luxembourg public limited
liability company having a principal place of business at 15, Rue Edward Steichen, 4" Floor, L-

2540, Luxembourg (R.C.S. Luxembourg B159161).

3. Uniloc Luxembourg owns a number of patents in the field of conference calling and
messaging.
4. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a Delaware corporation having a

principal place of business at 55 Almaden Blvd., 6th Floor, San Jose, CA and offers its products,
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including those accused herein of infringement, to customers and/or potential customers located in
Texas and in the judicial Eastern District of Texas. Defendant may be served with process through
its registered agent: The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center 1209 Orange St,
Wilmington, DE 19801.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. Uniloc brings this action for patent infringement under the patent laws of the United
States, 35 U.S.C. § 271 et seq. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§
1331, 1338(a) and 1367.

6. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(c) and
1400(b). Upon information and belief, Defendant is deemed to reside in this judicial district, has
committed acts of infringement in this judicial district, and/or has purposely transacted business
involving the accused products in this judicial district, including sales to one or more customers in
Texas.

7. Defendant is subject to this Court’s jurisdiction pursuant to due process and/or the
Texas Long Arm Statute due at least to its substantial business in this State and judicial district,
including: (A) at least part of its past infringing activities, (B) regularly doing or soliciting business
in Texas and/or (C) engaging in persistent conduct and/or deriving substantial revenue from goods
and services provided to customers in Texas.

PATENTS-IN-SUIT

8. U.S. Patent No. 8,571,194 (“the 194 Patent”), entitled SYSTEM AND METHOD
FOR INITIATING A CONFERENCE CALL issued on October 29, 2013. A true and correct copy

of the 194 Patent is attached as Exhibit A hereto.
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9. U.S. Patent No. 7,853,000 (“the ‘000 Patent”), entitled SYSTEM AND METHOD
FOR INITIATING A CONFERENCE CALL” issued on December 14, 2010. A true and correct
copy of the 000 Patent is attached as Exhibit B hereto. The ‘194 Patent and ‘000 Patents are
collectively referred to as the “Patents-in-Suit.”

10.  The Patent-in-Suit are part of patent family that has been referenced by hundreds of
other patent applications including patent applications by Microsoft Corporation; Yahoo! Inc.;
Cisco Technology, Inc.; Sprint Communications Company L.P.; Research In Motion Limited,;
International Business Machines Corporation; AT&T Intellectual Property I, L.P.; Qualcomm
Incorporated; Verizon Patent And Licensing Inc.; T-Mobile USA, Inc.; LG Electronics Inc.;
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd.; and Telefonaktiebolaget L M Ericsson.

COUNT I
(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,571,194)

11.  Uniloc incorporates the preceding paragraphs herein by reference.

12.  Uniloc Luxembourg is the owner, by assignment, of the ‘194 Patent.

13.  Uniloc USA is the exclusive licensee of the *194 Patent with ownership of all
substantial rights therein, including the right to grant sublicenses, to exclude others, and to enforce,
sue and recover past damages for the infringement thereof.

14.  Defendant has marketed and currently markets a voice and messaging application
under the name “ZOOM” which can be downloaded to a device from links provided at

https://zoom.us/download as well as the through other sites such as Google Play, the Apple App

Store, Google Chrome Web Store, Firefox Add-ons.

15.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how


https://zoom.us/download
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Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

Z OOI l l SALES PLANS JOIN A MEETING HOST A MEETING ~ SIGN IN

Web and Video
Conferencing

Enterprise H.323/SIP
Room Connector

Zoom Rooms

#1 Video Conferencingand Web
Conferencing Service Mobile

Screen Sharing

Sign Up Free
Business
IM and Presence

Zoom Earns Top Scores in,Gartner Critical Capabilities Report Video Webinars

Source: https://zoom.us/

16.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

What is Group Messaging?

Send Text, Images, and Audio Files Instantly On
Desktop, Laptop, Tablet and Mobile Devices

om



https://zoom.us/
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Send Group Messages

o Presence status (available/busy
and desktop/mobile)

o Send instant text messages

o Insert images on desktop or
mobile

o Push-to-talk on smartphones

Zoom

Source:
https://d24cgw3uvb9a9h.cloudfront.net/static/49861/doc/GroupMessaging Overview.pdf

17. Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

< test (3) 22
Today, 1:59 PM
You invited Fabulous Marmalade to this group message
Today, 2:14 PM

You invited Arvind Kr. Rabriwala to this group message

go

Today, 2:22 PM

@ Fabulous Marmalade

hi

@



https://d24cgw3uvb9a9h.cloudfront.net/static/49861/doc/GroupMessaging_Overview.pdf
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18.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendants’ voice and messaging application works:

4 test (3) 22

Today, 1:59 PM
You invitedFabulous Marmalade to this group message
Today, 2:14 PM

You invited Arvind Kr. Rabriwala to this group message

8 Q

Video Meeting Free Phone Call Take a Photo

Photo Album

19.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendants’ voice and messaging application works:
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Group Meeting

You are about to start a meeting and invite all
members of this group to join. Are you sure?

20.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendants’ voice and messaging application works:
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< 05-1014:33:25

Z00m 05-10 14:33:38

52.71.204.222:443 TCP No data
ec2-52-71-204-222.compute-1.amazonaws.com  SSL

Zoom 05-10 14:33:38

52.2.131.236:443 TCP 7.5KB
ec2-52-2-131-236.compute-1.amazonaws.com SSL

J
31.13.79.246:443 TCP No data
edge-star-shv-01-sin1.facebook.com SSL
Twitter 05-10 14:33:38
199.59.149.202:443 TCP No data
r-199-59-149-202.twttr.com SSL

#1 <--- 05-1014:33:38

POST fconf/fi7?cv=3.5.49759.0506 HTTPS1.1
User-Agent: Mozillas5.0 (ZOOM.Android)
Host: wwwid. zoom. us

Accept: */*

Cookie: srid=SaaSbeeTestMode(0123578; zpk=06Nxd4AD4u3%2FtraFFKaZtnI3d43h
L7PmZE4joDjtigwk3D. AwUkOTgz0Tk1YWQtMG IWwMi00YZVILWISY TMEYWL 1YmOxZTKOZ jUy
FTExMzEOMz IxNzUyNDcAMz EOMTEYMxZ rZkjakdBR1RWAURTVmBwe Fpma1hRD3IRScmlvbiBOY
XIn¥XIShgEASXLhM jkuQ2pIZUFzUUE IN2VUZmSL TVhLLXZ4d jZQRGA tSmRWWHR 1Tz JValpDoD
RscZRVQktZNOSSWEd2THp IWGN iWW 1l czRQOEIAABY tYOtiSmiMaF JHdW5SZR 1 1pTERnU2VRAME
%3D;

ZM-CAP: ¥

ZM-PROP: Android.Zoom

Content-Type: application/x-protobuf;charset=UTF-8

Content-Length: 122

x
RS GRHRHDEG 260 H T GR0RH0000 & 0§ § § 0DEEDD SIRDOINED NI IR D 0 B ¢
&

#2 ---> 05-10 14:33:38

HTTPS1.1 200 OK

Cache-Control: no-cache, no-store

Content-Type: application/x-protobuf;charset=UTF-2

Date: Tue, 10 May 2016 09:03:36 GMT

Expires: Thu, 01 Jan 1970 00:00:00 GMT

p3p: CP="NOI ADM DEV PSAi COM NAV OUR OTR STP IND DEM"

Pragma: no-cache

Server: nginx

Set-Cookie: cred=4472966384912DCATCSBEDTVDOES1DSBB; Path=/; HttpOnly
Set-Cookie: _zm_ssid=d5YZS5_WrSDSRT39YX3hikA; Domain=.zoom.us;
Expires=Tue, 10-May-2016 11:03:36 GMT; Path=/; Secure; HttpOnly
Set-Cookie: _zm_lang=en; Domain=.zoom.us; Expires=Wed, 10-May-2017
09:03:36 GMT; Path=/; Secure; HttpOnly

Content-Length: 6293

Connection: keep-alive

1

®RvMEZHCRj64KHhrQCVVGg== kfOCjOAFTVUDHVoOpZTKXQ tyrion targaryn”™ tyrion
targaryn‘s Zoom MeetingO@¢® Ripkgtep://52.21.215.9:8802, pkg|
5s5l://52.21.215.9:443, ; pkgtcp://52.1.72.205:8802, pkg|ssl://
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21.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how
Defendants’ voice and messaging application works:

22.

& Group - test

W Meet More ~

B tyrion targ... r ket ]

- @ Arvind Kr. Rabriwala 0O

hi

Fabulous Marmalade

hi

hi y all

] Capture Screen [ Send Picture B Send File

23.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:
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®ene ZOOM - Pro A‘&.oum

Q Search 4+ New Group

- Michael Mariscal

Yew Wai K

Nick Chong, Richard Gatchalia...

099

' Mark P. (Mobile)

Priscilla McCarthy » Do 07/21/14

Court England

e @

Room Sharks

Marketing

-

Q0

Greg Holmes Head of...

Source: https://d24cgw3uvb9a9h.cloudfront.net/static/49861/doc/GroupMessaging Overview.pdf

24.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

10
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Zoom Operating Instructions
How to invite more than a quick meeting by the group?

0 Tap Start a group conference, ZOOM will automatically send an invitation to this group all

users.
=) i -Rick CHBIZETE - oliEN
QR-:& =Ee
I e a wuny
» —
SRR ATNE -
IR RPN

O] wsnm M asEs @ aees

9 after sending the invitation, you will be prompted, in the group were invited.

il SRR -

then the user will receive an invitation notification, as long as the user accepts, it will
automatically enter the video of the meeting ZOOM

Q Zoom

Samuel Chang
...

Sourc: https://zoomnow.tw/zntw zoom step by step.php?subMenu=im gl0&Ilanguage set=zh-

tw

11
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https://zoomnow.tw/zntw_zoom_step_by_step.php?subMenu=im_q10&language_set=zh-tw
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25.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

4 test (3) f1 %
Today, 1:5% FM
Wou ivitedFabuised Marmalsde o this group medikge
Today, 214 PFM

Yol irenibed Arvind Kr. Habriwala to this group message

Group Meeting

You are about to start a meeting and invite all
members of this group to join. Are you sure?

Wideo Meeting Free Phone Call Takert 3 Phota

Photo Album

26.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

12
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& Group - test

W Meet

Me:

hi

@ Fabulous Marmalade

hi

@ Arvind Kr. Rabriwala

hi y all

Start a Meeting Without Video

Edit Group

Leave Group

Disable Message Motifications
Add to Contacts List

Hide Group Members

Chat History

2:22 PM

nCaptureScreen P Send Picture E Send File

[ o)
roup Members 3
rion targ... (Admin] Desktop @
Arvind Kr. Rabriwala Mobile []
Fabulous Marmalade Maobile [

27.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

13
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&

05-10 14:33:25

#1

<--- 05-10 14:33:38

POST /conf/i?cw=3.5.49759.0506 HTTR/1.1
User-Agent: Mozilla/5.0 (ZOOM.Android})
Host: wwwl. zoom. us

Zoom 05-10 14:33:38

52.71.204.222:443 TCP No data
ec2-52-71-204-222.compute-1.amazonaws.com  SSL

® 0[O

O

Zoom 05-10 14:33:38
52.2.131.236:443 TCP 7.5KB
ec2-52-2-131-236.compute-1.amazonaws.com SSL

05-10 14:33:38

No data
SSL

Instagram
31.13.79.246:443 TCP
edge-star-shv-01-sinl.facebook.com

05-1014:33:38

No data
SSL

Twitter
199.59.149.202:443 TCP
1-199-59-149-202.twttr.com

28.

Accept: */*

Cookie: srid=SaaSbeeTestMode00123578; zpk=06Nxd4AD4u3%2FtraFFKaZtnI3d43h
L7PmZ84joD]jt1gwk3D . AWUKOTgZzOTK1 YWQTMG IwMi00YZVILWISY THEYWI1YmQxZTKOZ jUy
FTExMzEOMz IxNzUyNDcAUZEOMTEYMxZ rZko jakoBR1RWAURIVmEwcF pma1hRD3RScmlvbiBOY
XJIn¥XJSbgEASXLhM kuQ2pIZUFzUUL INZVUZmSLTVHLLXZ4d jZQRGE tSmRWWHR 1Tz JVa0p0 0D
RSCZRVQktZN09SWED2THp1WGNiWV1J czRGDEIAABY tYOtiSmiMaFJHAWSZR 1 1pTERNUZVRAAE
%3D;

ZM-CAP: 7

ZM-PROP: Android.Zoom

Content-Type: application/x-protobuf;charset=UTF-8

Content-Length: 122

X

“HOEGRIEREOTE B0 H O HOUEN0IE ¢ 0 ¢ ¢ @ SEH0IENRD DUHREIINE PRI G B 0 ¢
@

#2 ---> 05-10 14:33:38

HTTP#1.1 200 OK

Cache-Control: no-cache, no-store

Content-Type: application/x-protobuf;charset=UTF-2

Date: Tue, 10 May 2016 09:03:36 GMT

Expires: Thu, 01 Jan 1970 00:00:00 GMT

p3p: CP="NOI ADM DEV PSAi COM NAV OUR OTR STP IND DEM"

Pragma: no-cache

Server: nginx

Set-Cookie: cred=4472966384912DCA7CSBEDYDOES1D5EB; Path=/; HttpOnly
Set-Cookie: _zm_ssid=d5YZS_WrSDSRFB9YX3hikA; Domain=.zoom.us;
Expires=Tue, 10-May-2016 11:03:36 GNT; Path=/; Secure; HttpOnly
Set-Cookie: _zm_lang=en; Domain=.zoom.us; Expires=Wed, 10-May-2017
09:03:36 GMT; Path=/; Secure; HttpOnly

Content-Length: 6293

Connection: keep-alive

#1

xRwMEzHCRj64KHhrQCWEg== kfOc jOAFTVUDHVOOpZTkX) tyrion targaryn" tyriom
targaryn's Zoom Meeting0@¢® Ripkgtep://52.21.215.9:8802,pkg|
ssl://52.21.215.9:443, ;pketcp://52.1.72.205: 8802, pkg |ssl://

Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

14
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© Zoom Participant ID: 37 40-Minutes Meeting ID:970-375-440

2 tyrion targaryn

i Gallery View

o ey 1 Dt L3 8 0T S ol K. BAT D9 e s bt il
.IN'N'WIIW:'*W;-‘YFA 2

2o

Invite

2.3

Manage Participants

29.

Share Screen

Chat

®

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

ICT

';_;." Microsoft Office Outlook 2007

Documents
Pictures

Music

Computer

Control Panel

= Devices and Printers

Default Programs

Help and Support

b All Programs

XM Ghutdown | ¥ |

Search programs and files

0g Les

Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

_'a Start Zoom Properties

-

Security | Details | Prewvious Versions
General | Shorteut | Compatibiity
@ Start Zoom
Target type: Application
Target location: bin
Target: ChUsers's AppData‘\Roaming“Zoom
Start in:
Shortout key:  None
Run: [Non‘nal window - ]
Comment: Zoom UMX
Open File Location ] [ Change lcon... l [ Advanced. .. ]

15
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30.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

ZOOM Cloud Meetings
!.al" MNLUS

e
Yoe WHATS NEW

1. Fix isstm whers users receive no video from
ON-DMIMse ey 'ith'

P o issue where users status goes offiine

31.  Upon information and belief, the following describes, at least in part, how

Defendant’s voice and messaging application works:

16
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"':?.ll. - 2:29

Contacts +

A
@ Arvind Kr. Rabriwala Mobile [J
F

Fabulous Marmalade Mobile [

L L

32.  Defendant has directly infringed, and continue to directly infringe one or more
claims of the 194 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in Texas, including claims 1-16
literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, by or through making, using, importing, offering
for sale and/or selling its voice and messaging application during the pendency of the *194 Patent
which inter alia comprises instructions for displaying an instant message chat window, exchanging
instant messages between two or more parties, displaying an indication of whether parties are
connected to said instant message session, and automatically initiating an audio/video call between
the participants.

33.  In addition, should Defendant’s voice and messaging application be found to not
literally infringe the asserted claims of the 194 Patent, Defendant’s accused products would
nevertheless infringe the asserted claims of the *194 Patent. More specifically, the accused voice

and messaging application performs substantially the same function (contains instructions for

17
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implementing an IM to voice/video call capability), in substantially the same way (comprising
computer readable instructions contained in or loaded into non-transitory memory) to yield
substantially the same result (effecting an instant message to voice/video call). Defendants would
thus be liable for direct infringement under the doctrine of equivalents.

34.  Defendant may have infringed the *194 Patent through other software, currently
unknown to Uniloc, utilizing the same or reasonably similar functionality, including other versions
of its voice and messaging application. Uniloc reserves the right to discover and pursue all such
additional infringing software.

35.  Defendant has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe claims 1-16
of the ‘194 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States by, among other things,
actively inducing the using, offering for sale, selling, and/or importation of Defendant’s messaging
software. Defendant’s customers who use such software in accordance with Defendant’s
instructions directly infringe one or more of the above identified claims of the ‘194 Patent in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

36.  Defendant’s instruct its customers in the use of its messaging software through
Internet demonstrations, training videos, brochures and administration, maintenance, installation

and/or user guides, such as those located at the following:

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/sections/201740096-Training

Defendant is thereby liable for infringement of the ‘194 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).
24.  Defendant has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe claims 1-16

of the ‘194 Patent, by among other things, contributing to the direct infringement by others,

18
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including without limitation users of its messaging software, by making, using, offering to sell, or
selling, in the United States, and/or importing a component of a patented machine, manufacture, or
combination, or an apparatus for use in the practicing a patent process, constituting a material part
of the invention, knowing the same to be especially made or especially adapted for use in
infringement of the ‘194 Patent, and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for
substantial non-infringing use.

25.  For example, the Defendant’s messaging software module that allows users to
initiate a call from an instant message window is a component of a patented machine, manufacture,
or combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patented process. Furthermore, such software
module is a material part of the invention and upon information and belief is not a staple article or
commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Thus, Defendant is liable for
infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(c).

26. Defendant will have been on notice of the ‘194 Patent since, at the latest, the service
of this complaint. By the time of trial, Defendant will thus have known and intended (since
receiving such notice) that its continued actions would actively induce and contribute to actual
infringement of claims 1-16 of the ‘194 Patent.

27. Uniloc has been damaged, reparably and irreparably, by Defendant’s infringement
of the ‘194 Patent and such damage will continue unless and until Defendant is enjoined.

COUNT 1l
(INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,853,000)
28.  Uniloc incorporates the preceding paragraphs herein by reference.

29.  Uniloc Luxembourg is the owner, by assignment, of the 000 Patent.

19
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30.  Uniloc USA is the exclusive licensee of the 000 Patent with ownership of all
substantial rights therein, including the right to grant sublicenses, to exclude others, and to enforce,
sue and recover past damages for the infringement thereof.

37.  Defendants has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe one or more
claims of the 000 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in Texas, including at least claims
1-8, 12, 18, and 20-23 literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, by or through making,
using, importing, offering for sale and/or selling devices with its voice and messaging application
during the pendency of the 000 Patent which inter alia comprises instructions for indicating a
plurality of potential targets then being connected to an instant messaging service and participating
in a given instant messaging session with a conference call requester and generating a conference
call request responsively to a single request by the conference call requester where a conference
call is automatically established.

38.  In addition, should Defendant’s voice and messaging application be found to not
literally infringe the asserted claims of the 000 Patent, Defendant’s accused products would
nevertheless infringe the asserted claims of the 000 Patent. More specifically, the accused voice
and messaging application performs substantially the same function (implementing an IM to
voice/video call capability), in substantially the same way (through instructions) to yield
substantially the same result (effecting an instant message to voice/video call). Defendant would
thus be liable for direct infringement under the doctrine of equivalents.

39.  Defendant may have infringed the 000 Patent through other software, currently
unknown to Uniloc, utilizing the same or reasonably similar functionality, including other versions

of its voice and messaging application. Uniloc reserves the right to discover and pursue all such

20
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additional infringing software.

40.  Defendant has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe at least claims
1-8, 12, 18, and 20-23 of the 000 Patent in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States
by, among other things, actively inducing the using, offering for sale, selling, and/or importation of
Defendant’s messaging software. Defendant’s customers who use such devices and software in
accordance with Defendant’s instructions directly infringe one or more of the above identified
claims of the 000 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

31. Defendant instruct its customers in the use of its messaging software through
Internet demonstrations, training videos, brochures and administration, maintenance, installation
and/or user guides. Defendant is thereby liable for infringement of the *000 Patent pursuant to 35
U.S.C. § 271(b).

32.  Defendant has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe at least claims
1-8, 12, 18, and 20-23 of the 000 Patent, by among other things, contributing to the direct
infringement by others, including without limitation users of its messaging software, by making,
using, offering to sell, or selling, in the United States, and/or importing a component of a patented
machine, manufacture, or combination, or an apparatus for use in the practicing a patent process,
constituting a material part of the invention, knowing the same to be especially made or especially
adapted for use in infringement of the 000 Patent, and not a staple article or commodity of
commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use.

33.  For example, the Defendant’s messaging software module that allows users to
initiate a call from an instant message window is a component of a patented machine, manufacture,

or combination, or an apparatus for use in practicing a patented process. Furthermore, such software

21
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module is a material part of the invention and upon information and belief is not a staple article or
commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Thus, Defendant is liable for
infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(c).

34. Defendant will have been on notice of the 000 Patent since, at the latest, the service
of this complaint. By the time of trial, Defendant will thus have known and intended (since
receiving such notice), that its continued actions would actively induce and contribute to actual
infringement of at least claims 1-8, 12, 18, and 20-23 of the *000 Patent.

35. Uniloc has been damaged, reparably and irreparably, by Defendant’s infringement

of the ‘000 Patent and such damage will continue unless and until Defendant is enjoined.

JURY DEMAND

36. Uniloc hereby requests a trial by jury pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Uniloc requests that the Court find in its favor and against Defendant, and that the Court
grant Uniloc the following relief:

(A)  that Defendant has infringed the 194 Patent and the ‘000 Patent;

(B)  awarding Uniloc its damages suffered as a result of Defendant’s infringement of the
>194 Patent and the ‘000 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

(C)  enjoining Defendant, its officers, directors, agents, servants, affiliates, employees,
divisions, branches, subsidiaries and parents, and all others acting in concert or

privity with it from infringing the 194 Patent and the ‘000 Patent pursuant to 35
U.S.C. § 283;

(D)  awarding Uniloc its costs, attorneys’ fees, expenses and interest, and

(E)  granting Uniloc such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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Dated: May 28, 2016 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ James L. Etheridge

James L. Etheridge

Texas State Bar No. 24059147

Ryan S. Loveless

Texas State Bar No. 24036997

Brett A. Mangrum

Texas State Bar No. 24065671
Travis L. Richins

Texas State Bar No. 24061296
ETHERIDGE LAW GROUP, PLLC
2600 E. Southlake Blvd., Suite 120/ 324
Southlake, Texas 76092

Telephone: (817) 470-7249
Facsimile: (817) 887-5950
Jim@EtheridgeLaw.com
Ryan@EtheridgeLaw.com
Brett@EtheridgeLaw.com
Travis@EtheridgeLaw.com

Counsel for Plaintiffs Uniloc USA, Inc. and Uniloc
Luxembourg S.A.
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